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AB 529 ADAPTIVE REUSE WORKING GROUP 
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION TEMPLATE GUIDELINE 

The following guideline is intended to facilitate stakeholder  feedback  to HCD’s Request for   
Information  (RFI)  on adaptive reuse. In order  to ensure feedback can be organized and accurately  
reflected  in  HCD’s  findings,  please  fill  out  a  separate  form  for  each  individual  recommendation  that 
you are proposing. Responses are due by  5:00 pm  PST on December 5,  2024.  

Respondent Information 
Providing the following personal information is voluntary and you may leave these sections blank if 
you would like to remain anonymous. While the name of an organization, entity, or agency may 
become part of the public record and be included with the published responses to this RFI, please 
note that the personal information (name, email contact information) of individuals (i.e., natural 
persons) will not be disclosed or published with the responses and will not become part of the public 
record, except as authorized or required by law. However, you have the option of consenting to HCD 
disclosing and/or publishing your name when posting your response/comment as indicated below. If 
you would like to be added to HCD’s list of interested stakeholders who may be contacted as this 
development process pertaining to the identification of challenges and opportunities for adaptive 
reuse within the scope of AB 529 continues and progresses, please also indicate your preference in 
the section below. 

Name 
Organization/Entity/Agency or 
Affiliation 
Public Email Contact Information 
Add to Contact List ☐ ☐Yes  or  No

☐ (OPTIONAL) I consent to HCD disclosing and/or publishing my name when posting my
response/comment to this RFI.

Please provide Areas of Interest in Adaptive Reuse Report/Development Process: 
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Response 
Assembly Bill 529 includes specific issue areas that the working group may consider. Which of these 
does this specific response fall into? Please select a response from the following Area of Interest: 

1. Energy and Insulation Upgrades

 

 
       

 

               
   

       

               

             

2. Fire-rated Assemblies
3. Water and Sewer Piping

4. Energy infrastructure, including individual utility meter upgrades

5. Habitability

6. Any other local or state building requirement that may render the conversion or reuse of
an existing building financially infeasible for residential uses

What are the opportunities that help support adaptive reuse related to the topic selected above? 

What are the challenges to adaptive reuse related to the topic selected above? 
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Proposal 
If you are proposing - specific amendments to the building standards, or other related health and 
safety standards, please fill out the boxes below. 

Suggested Amendments or Description 

Rationale for Proposal 

Economic Impact of Proposal 

Describe if and how this proposal will impact any of the following: 

Will this proposal impact housing costs? 

Click here to select a response 

If yes: 
Describe the annual cost for each housing unit: 
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Will  this  proposal  impact  businesses  and  /  or  employees?  

CClick here to select a response. 

If yes: 

How many businesses would be impacted? 

Describe the types of businesses impacted. 

What would be the initial and annual ongoing costs to businesses impacted? 

Would this proposal impact small businesses? 

ClicClickk   herheree   toto   sseellecect t   aa   rresesponsponsee.   

If yes: 
How many small businesses would be impacted? 

What would be the initial and annual ongoing costs to businesses? 
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Will  this  proposal  have  an  impact  on  jobs  or  occupations?  

ClicClickk   herheree   toto   sseellecect t   aa   rresesponsponsee.   

Click here to a respons

Click here to a espons

If yes: 
How many jobs will be created? 

How many jobs will be eliminated? 

Describe the types of jobs or occupations impacted. 

Would this proposal affect the ability of California businesses to compete with other states? 

select eClick here to select a response. 

If yes, please explain briefly. 

Will this proposal have an impact on individuals? 

select rClick here to select a response.e 

If yes, please indicate initial and annual ongoing costs to individuals below. 
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Economic Benefit of Suggested Amendments 

Describe the benefits of the suggested amendments to building standards, including but not limited 
to, the health and welfare of California residents and the environment, the total annual statewide 
benefit in dollars, and any expansion of businesses. 
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	Respondent Information

	Name: Joseph S. Bishop
	OrganizationEntityAgency or Affiliation: City of Arcata, Building Department
	Public Email Contact Information: jbishop@cityofarcata.org
	OPTIONAL I consent to HCD disclosing andor publishing my name when posting my: On
	Please provide Areas of Interest in Adaptive Reuse Report/Development Process:: I serve as the Building Official for a local jurisdiction. My area of interest is specifically in building code compliance. I see the need for housing, but it is critical that all housing be in compliance with the building code at the time of construction. The building code is a minimum standard for protecting the health and safety of occupants and the community.
	What are the opportunities that help support adaptive reuse related to the topic selected above?: Advances in both solar and heat-pump technology should make adaptive reuse more feasible. The performance method for compliance with the energy code allow for trade-offs and "budgeting". 

Existing buildings may be challenging to fully insulate to prescriptive levels, but the performance method may offset these challenges with more solar and more efficient heating/cooling methods.

Additional provisions could be added to the TDV (time-dependent value) equations that govern the performance compliance method for alterations to existing buildings.
	What are the challenges to adaptive reuse related to the topic selected above?: Many existing buildings that are under consideration for adaptive reuse may have little to no insulation, and are likely designed with a central HVAC system that would not work for individual dwelling units. Each unit would need to be insulated and provided with independent heating/cooling equipment.

In addition to insulation and space-conditioning equipment, there will need to be energy efficient appliances such as a water heater and cooking appliances. Most likely these appliances would be all electric which would increase the need for solar and infrastructure upgrades, both of which increase cost.
	Suggested Amendments or Description: Current provisions in the CA Energy Code (Title 24, Part 6) do not have a clear path to compliance for adaptive reuse of existing non-residential buildings. Specific provisions could be added to Subchapter 5, and Subchapter 6, for a change of occupancy from "Nonresidential and hotel/motel" to "Multifamily".
	Rationale for Proposal: Currently the only provision I see that directs the user is a note in 141.0 that says "For alterations that change the occupancy classification of the building, the requirements specified in 141.0(b) apply to the occupancy after the alteration."

Nothing in 141.0 covers Multifamily buildings, instead the user would then need to go to Subchapters 10-12. Specifically, Section 180.2(c) covers the performance approach for compliance with alterations to existing multifamily buildings. Adding specific provisions for adaptive reuse here would make it clear to the user what the intentions are.
	Describe the annual cost for each housing unit:: Specific provisions for adaptive reuse could reduce construction costs by allowing some trade-offs between insulation and energy efficiency. Allowing this would create more housing and therefore should make for more affordable housing.
	What would be the initial and annual ongoing costs to businesses?: 
	How many small businesses would be impacted?: 
	How many businesses would be impacted?: 
	Describe the types of businesses impacted: 
	What would be the initial and annual ongoing costs to businesses impacted?: 
	Describe the benefits of the suggested amendments to building standards,: With special provisions added to make adaptive reuse more feasible more vacant non-residential could be converted to housing. This helps the economy first by making use of the vacant buildings, and by creating more housing.
	If yes, please indicate initial and annual ongoing costs to individuals below: 
	If yes, please explain briefly: California is one of the most heavily regulated states and therefore adaptive reuse of existing buildings are more difficult in this State. Providing alternate provisions for these kinds of projects would help CA to compete better with other States.
	Describe the types of jobs or occupations impacted: Construction.
	How many jobs will be eliminated?: 
	How many jobs will be created?: Unknown. An increase of projects of this nature would boost the construction industry.
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